lain Sarjeant

Strathpeffer before the Spa

People have lived in the Strathpeffer valley for
over 5,000 years, as shown by Neolithic burial
chambers and axes, and Bronze Age burials
and round houses. From about 800BC, the
Knockfarrel hillfort to the east was defended,
and perhaps lived in. Remains of the vitrified
rock, melted during what must have been a
catastrophic fire, can still be seen. The crannog,
an artificial island, on Loch Kinellan to the west
also probably dates to this period (see
Extending your Walk).

In Strathpeffer itself, the first surviving evidence
is the Eagle Stone (). In the Medieval period
Castle Leod (),
seat of the Clan
Mackenzie, was
built. The Loch
Kinellan crannog
was also re-used
by another branch
of the Mackenzies.
In the 17" or 18"
century the
crannog probably
became a hunting
lodge.

Loch Kinellan

Until the 19™
century there was
no Strathpeffer, just four main farms: Kinellan,
Park, Kinnettas and Ardival. The growth of the
village was due to the conscious development
of the area into a spa resort.

Strathpeffer Spa

The benefits of the sulphur and chalybeate
(iron-rich) wells in the area began to be
exploited in the late 1700s. A wooden pump
room was erected in 1819. This was replaced
in 1829, and extended in 1871. A second
pump room was built c. 1860 and still
survives. After 1861 the Cromartie estate
invested more in the Spa, encouraging building
of much needed accommodation and
expanding facilities.

The coming of the railway in 1870 helped,
although due to opposition by a local
landowner the village was bypassed. The
nearest station was Achterneed until the branch
line to the Spa opened in 1885. Sleeper trains
went from London to Strathpeffer.

Many hotels and large villas were built. The
Spa Hotel advertised itself as the earliest. It
burned down in 1942 while in use as a
wartime hospital. Its rival, the Ben Wyvis
Hotel, was built in 1879. Many of the villas
were designed to be let to visitors during the
season. For example, the houses opposite the
Community Centre were built by Donald
Mackenzie in 1889. He made his fortune in
America — and
named his house
New York Villa.
Many of the houses
you pass on the trail
date from the last
two decades of the
1800s and into the
early 1900s.

Highland Museum of Childhood

New York Villa

Many doctors consulted in the village. Visitors
came from as far afield as the Continent and
included royalty and famous people of the day
such as Sir Ernest Shackleton and Robert Louis
Stevenson. The poor were allowed free water,
and later a hospital was built for poor invalids
(@) The bathing rooms had the most
advanced facilities. There were concerts,
excursions and sporting pursuits.

Wartime Strathpeffer

During WWI many buildings in Strathpeffer
were taken over (@ @ @). After the war, the
fortunes of the
Spa declined.
WWII brought
another brief, and
changed, focus.
Many hotels and
houses were
taken over to
accommodate military personnel. The A.T.S.
had training in the Ben Wyvis Hotel, where
there is also said to have been a military jail.
Training exercises were run in areas around
the village. Prisoners of War based in a nearby
camp at Brahan helped at many of the farms
around, including Ardival.

Roseann Christie
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The Pavilion during WW1

Postwar Strathpeffer

After WWI the Spa never revived, but coach
tours now bring many visitors to the surviving
hotels. The Pavilion continued to hold
concerts and attracted coach loads of music
fans until it gradually fell into disrepair. Now
fortunately restored, it again offers a range of
entertainment and events.

Extending Your Walk

Golf Course

At the top of the hill from the square is the
Golf course, commanding good views of the
area. The course was laid out by renowned
course designer Willie Park.

Loch Kinellan

Well marked paths from the village take you to
Loch Kinellan, the site of the crannog. Kinellan
was one of the original four farms in the valley.

Jamestown

A footpath from Elsick
House at the west end
of the village takes
you to the estate
village of Jamestown,
with its picturesque derelict Free church (built
1861-2) and a number of old cottages.

The Maze and Knockfarrel

Walk up the Ardival road, passing one of the
original four farms. After climbing the stile near
the woods, bear left on the path where you

will find a ‘maze’, a collection of large
boulders telling the story of Highland geology.
The path (steep in places) continues to
Knockfarrel.

‘The Heights’

Take the Achterneed turning to the east of
Strathpeffer for a drive to a crofting landscape
with lovely views south. The Neil Gunn
Viewpoint, a memorial to one of Scotland’s
famous authors, also has a prehistoric cup and
ring marked stone (accessible by wheelchairs).

This leaflet was researched and produced by a local
group led by Susan Kruse of ARCH in 2015, funded
by the Heritage Lottery Fund and Mackenzie New
York Villa Trust, in a joint project run by ARCH and
Strathpeffer Community Centre.

Fiona Newton

The Pump Room (which is also the local tourist
information office) has copies of materials produced
in the project as well as displays about the village.
Copies of the full listing of sites recorded can also
be found at Strathpeffer Community Centre, The
Highland Museum of Childhood, Dingwall Library,
and on the ARCH website (www.archhighland.org.uk),
Strathpeffer Community website (www.strathpeffer.org)
and Strathpeffer Community Centre website
(www.strathpeffercommunitycentre.org.uk). Information
about individual sites has also been submitted to the
Highland HER (her.highland.gov.uk) and Canmore
(canmore.org.uk) heritage databases.

‘One Touch” tours of the village and archaeology of the
area, produced by the Strathpeffer Initiative, can be rented
from the Pump Room or Museum of Childhood, or the
app can be downloaded (see Strathpeffer Community
website for details).
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A Walk Around

Strathpeffer

‘Near here is a valley, birch woods, heather
and a stream... No country, no place was
ever for a moment so delightful to my soul.’

Robert Louis Stevenson,
on his visit to Strathpeffer, 1880

’ ® m
@ heritage

loftery fund
LOTTERY FUNDED




pooypyy> jo wndsnj pueyySiH

‘peo. urew Asnq ay) uo a.1ed dye) ased|d ‘suap.ed pue
ssulpjinq 43jud jou op pue Ajiado.ud ajearid 1oadsas aseald

‘yped ay) Suipioae peoi Aq

9)N0J JAIJRUII)E IS £ 3 9| "SOU WO} uMop Sulped]
yred 3y pue duo)g 3|3e] ay} 10y 1dadXd ‘sareyojPIYym
10} 3]qe}Ins sI Aem 3y} JO JSO “JEI|1IA0 PIPUIWILLOI
SUOISUI)XI [euOnIPpE e 313Y) pue ‘(pod]

apiseD SuIipn|dxa) Jnoy ue Jnoqe e} pjnoys yem Ay

‘sdoys ayy ayisoddo Suipueys

uaym s3ulpjing Jo JIquInu e IS ued NoA AIdYM ‘arenbg

3y} si Je)s 0} ddejd poo3 v _yadyrens ul sgulpjing
8unsa.19)ul 3Y) JO 3WOS punote noA sIye} [rea) siyL

‘0651 ul payuejd InuisayD ysiueds

e 3uipn|oul ‘@duenodwl jeuoljeu Jo saa1)
98e)1Iay aulj SWOS Sey Os[e poa] dise)) "P|o
s1edA 0G| 1oA0 ase yied Jed wooy dwng
ay) Jeau e1uoj3ul||aAN 81e] 2y "93e||IA Yy}
UIYIM S9a1) d|qeiou Auew sey Jayadyrens

sda11 M
L

"9ouenud ay) Je Je||id paAted puey ay)
9JON "wool ea) e pue sdoys ‘pooyp|iyd
JO WIN3sN B sasnoy
Mmou 3| rem ay} uunp
sdoou se [jom se edg ay) 0)
SIO)SIA AQ pasn Sem )| 1 G6 |
ul paso|d pue ggg| ul pauado
UOIIe}s UelIOIIA pantasald |jam ay]
uone)s 13gadypens @ \m

—

"9]A)s s)yeld pue sue ayj ul si (088 1)

9SNOH pay 9| ‘pue|EaZ MAN Ul dUNIOJ SIY dpeLu
OUYM pasuIayoy Jo siysioH

9y} Wolj ueuua e pleuod Aq
£/81 U1i|ing sem nrewi| 'so0g L
ale| 9y} WoJj Se||IA Juedale ay)
JO OM} 935 UBD NOA UOIIe)S By} 0}
duipes| aALIp ay) jo do} sy} wo.
asnoy pay (@ pue nsewn @ f

P}
<
g
N
(=]
-

“1eah ayy u1 sAep 19s uo uad(Q jqsadns st |jem woo.
pler|ig oY) uo dew Aimuad ;8| plw ay] "9]3sed asnoy
J9MO} UISpOW AJ1e3/[eAdIpawl e
e Jo 9|dwexa poogd e se JoLdjul
3]1seD B} pue ‘s9a1) a3e}lIay
119y} 10} Pajou aI1e spunoisd

9yl aiewol) Jo s|ieg ay} Jo
aWOY |el}SadUe aY} SI 9]3sed ay |
poa1 3psed @

£/ poatapse) o)

‘saoeyd ur Asaddis aq ued pue
sA1eyd [9dYMm 104 ajqe}ins jJou si auojs ajsey ay) o) yjed ay) :210N
"90€|d Ul pajuBWad AJWLIl} MOU SI }1 ‘@D1M)

paAOW Ud3( Apealje SUIABH "dUO0}S Ay} 0} JoOoWw pue Ad[|eA ayy dn
[res [Im sdiys ‘awi} pliy} e 10y S||ej 2U0S 9|3e] ay) JI Jey) pautem

ih, U/ (oydoud Aimuad 2| Amopeys e) 1aag ueyeag ay) Aq Adeydoud v
; ; "910]| [BD0] Ul S2INJE3} OS[B SUOIS SIY] "S|OqUIAS 3} JO Sulueaw ay}

| U0 93Egep YoNW Usaq Sey a1ay] ‘qV AINJULD 6 03,/ dY) USIMI|

o Alqeqoid Sunep ‘sjoquiAs ysiold panted sey auolg a|3e] ay|
£ auojs 3[3e3 @

pue 3uLing "28e||IA 8y} Ul pasn a¢ 0} Ue3a( SI1ed UdyM
adesed e aweda(q Jaje| Suipeas ay] ‘wJey [euldLio ay}
WOJJ DAIAINS [[13S 9SNOY WLIe) pue SUlpea)s Sejauuly|
Suiped)s sepauuny @

"SMOPUIM
sse|3 paute)s A|oAo|
9} ION ‘sawoy
payoelep-1Was

OM] OJUI PIPIAIP SeM
W /61 U] "sdoouy 1oy
SWOY JUSISD|BAUOD
© SeM 3 [IMM

pue MM Ul "068 L
ul [9]JOH ueuopy
9y} se J|INq Sem siy|
ueuop|iy

/ mainyrens @

"2I9Y UMOYS 219M Swi|1} [AAAM Jo)e

‘006 | Ul pajesdasuod pue pajajdwod sem J1 alojoq pasn
SeM ]| "16Q| Ul pre| sem s,auuy JS JO aUO}S UOIEPUNOY
3y "yoinyD 99214 payiun e pue yoinyd aal4 e ‘yainyd)

ueredoosidy ue ‘(Ausppo4 ul younyo ysted ayy woly
19A0 93[E} 0}) PUBJJ0DS JO YdInyD B Suipn|oul 4jIng a1om
sayoInyd mau edg ayy Jo Ajrejndod 3uiseasour ayy YA
yaany) ueijedoosidy s,puuy 1S @

354n0D Jjon

‘w1y modse|n) pajou e Aq paijddns
9I9M UDIYM ‘S|Ie}op pUue JaWIop

"€661 Ul paso|d Ajjeuty 11 g6 | Ul
SHN 9y} 0} USAID "968 | WO} spljeAul
Jood 1oy Juswiyeany papirold Jeyndsoy
[ELIOWSIN 91ZUM DB UOS|0DIN dYL

[eLIOWRY d1ZUdY R UOS|OJIN (D

Ajuo ayy st siy|
punoun jerLing
sejjauuny 9

“SJueq e sem 3uIp|ing 3yl s066 | Y} |1IUN

SO¥6 | @Y} 1SE9| 1B WO} J9JeT] [pash aAeY S10}00p
s3uip|ing Jo [1eJ} B 9pew dABY P|NOd am Auew

0s — edg oy} ul sa11981Ns $,.10}00p AueW Ay} JO dUO
sem JeAglel)) Jo spunoid ayj ui duipjing jutenb siyj
puepooss

JOHjueg [e113WwWo) pue A1334ns s,10)00p 13w04 @

A KDRA |

"paJ03sal Usaq Aj@yeuniioy sey 3 109|3au

JO SIBA 19)Jy "S9OUBP PUB S}ADUOD 10J Pasn []MAA Sulinp pue
[exdsoy [eAeN uedLIBWY UB SeM JI [AMAA SulIN( "SI0HSIA edg
10} @NUAA JusWUleLIRIUS 9dJe| e apirold 0} £€gQ | ul pauado
‘uUspeg-usapegq e oulsed € Jo UdIsap Y} U0 pPaseq ‘uol|ired ay|
uoljired ©

‘AepAay

s)1 ul edg ay) Jnoge uonewlojul pue sAejdsip poos sey pue
pausIA aq ued wooy dung Jaddn
Y1 Ing ‘0S6 L Ul paysijowsp sem
wooy dwng Jomo] ay] "Swoo.
dwnd ay) 1e ayreq pue siarem ayy
sjulip 0} edg ay} 0} Swed SI0MSIA

wooy dwny s3ddn @

pue ‘wooy
dwng 1amo13y; @

endsopy

6L Eo.ow_ diting somo

5
B
=
@
| ~
%)
=
<
=
=

w M UL [910H pue|ySiH
< E ‘ sa1[1wey Aredjiw 1oy [IAMA Ul pue ‘esdsoy
2 ® Se |AAM SuLINp pasn os[e sem [910Y ay}
._@o__w;u\m»t8 cM = ‘Auedwo)) Aem|iey puejysiH ayr Aq | 16| Ul yjing
0 3lIs 3y} A|qeqo.
: pue \“*mtwm_;wmbm e
Ui A1ajewian 'spo03 Aoue} pue Jeamyiuy Sul||as

‘IaUMO Ysu| siI AqQ paweu o0s ‘seuuy 91N Y3i|
se umouy doys e awedaq 06 | 191 dwi} SWos
Je pue ‘Areiqi| SUIPUS| B SBM ]| "S|[9M BY} JO dUO JO dYS
3y} UO sl J9[eYd SSIMG e Jo 9]A)s e ul Sulp|ing Jaquin siy|
seuuy aIw ysu / Sulprys ay1 @

jueq e sem 3l 06| u| uoydeidojoyd e o) swoy pue
'£681 Ul 3|INg sem }1 usym ,0Ipnig
ayl, paj|e2d Ajjeuidiio ‘a1j4eyreaH
s1 98P0 AUYA pulyRq djjem

10oys v "93e[|IA a3y} Ul $asnoy 1sap|o dy)
JO 0M] d1e 93p0T AUYAA pue adeno)) edg
alj4ayiesH @

pue ‘93po7 apym @ ‘a8eno) eds @

yaeds joue8iep

uoJ1 Jsed ay) 9oN
"durwie) YoLyso ul
QunLIoJ sy apew
oym ‘1aselq W
‘uedilyy yinos e Aq
0061 21|INq sem
B||iA pueid siy)

uaydiuung @

"S|1ej9p 01Ul DWOS
sulejal pue ‘sieak (| 19A0 10} 219y uaaq Sey Adeweyd ay ]
"s1eak ay) Jano pagdueyd aney sdoys ay] "eds ayj jo sdulpjing

urew ayj 0} aso|d ‘o8e[|IA 3y} Jo Jeay ay) st asenbg ay) @)

arenbg oy,

19)3odyreng punoiy 3oy ¥




